
  
MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE ADVERTISING AND PROMOTION COMMITTEE OF THE TOWN OF 
PINETOP-LAKESIDE, ARIZONA, HELD ON DECEMBER 16, 2015 IN THE TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS.  
Chairman Petersen called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. 
 
ROLL CALL:   Present   Absent         Present       Absent 
 
Chairman Joe Petersen                X                        Jeffrey McKee          X   
Vice Chair Rica Girardi                 X     Gil Armijo                 X                      
Lynn Krigbaum                   X     Kathy Dahnk             X    
Vacant - Sunrise                  Steve Berman          X              
Vice Mayor Place                      X                 Diane Tilton          X   
Councilmember Wessel       X          
  
STAFF PRESENT:  Jill Akins, Assistant to the Town Clerk and Evelyn Racette, Town Manager.  
 
OTHERS PRESENT:  Sam John, Larry John Wright and Associates and Hugh Keeler, Sunrise Park Resort. 
 
ITEM NO. 2, CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  
  
There were no requests to address the Committee at this time. 
 
ITEM NO. 3, CONSENT AGENDA MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING HELD NOVEMBER 18, 2015 AND THE 
RETREAT HELD NOVEMBER 18, 2015: 
 
COMMITTEEMEMBER BERMAN MOVED TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING HELD 
NOVEMBER 18, 2015 AND THE MINUTES OF THE RETREAT HELD NOVEMBER 18, 2015.  COMMITTEEMEMBER 
DAHNK SECONDED THE MOTION AND IT CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
ITEM NO. 4, REPORT FROM THE BUDGET SUBCOMMITTEE ON THE ADVERTISING AND PROMOTION 
COMMITTEE BUDGET FOR FY 2014-2015: 
 
Evelyn Racette said the Sales Tax Summary Report shows an error with Maverick, and said Maverick overpaid.  
She said next month it would show the correction, but said it would take a couple of months to correct the 
document.  She said otherwise everything is looking good for the Committee.  She said the Restaurant and Bar 
tax is up year to date, and said Hotel tax is also up.  Chairman Petersen said, for him, November 2015 took a 
dip compared to November 2014.  He said December 2015 is up so far.   
 
ITEM NO. 5, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION/LEGAL ACTION REGARDING WEBSITE PRESENTATIONS FROM IMS 
MANAGEMENT GROUP, WEBSREFRESH AND GEO & ASSOCIATES, INC.: 
 
Chairman Petersen said each company would have twenty minutes to present to the Advertising and 
Promotion Committee, and said a question and answer session would follow the presentations. IMS 
Management Group, Geo & Associates and Websrefresh each gave a twenty minute presentation.  
Committeemember McKee asked how a small Mom and Pop hotel would get their information on the hotel 
booking tool.  Chairman Petersen explained how booking.com works, and said the hotelier pays the booking 
fee.  He explained how it would work on the Visit.com website, and said it would have to be discussed who 
would be included on the website.  He said Show Low hotels would not be included on the website.  More 
discussion ensued regarding the hotel on-line booking system on the website.  Committeemember Berman 



asked all three presenters about the collection of the user data.  All three presenters said the data is password 
protected and no data is shared.  Chairman Petersen asked IMS Management Group for an hourly rate after 
the first year of complimentary maintenance is over.  IMS said it would be approximately $175.00 per hour.  
Vice Chairman Girardi asked Geo & Associates what the hourly maintenance rate would be after the first year.  
Geo said the hourly rate would be $55.00 per hour, and said the range to create the site would be $3,500.00 
to $5,000.00.   Committeemember McKee asked Geo & Associates and IMS Management Group if the sites 
they create would have language options like Websrefresh said they would create in their site. Geo & 
Associates and IMS Management Group both said they would be able to create a site with this option.  
Chairman Petersen asked Ms. Racette if selling advertisements on the website would be legal for the 
Committee to do.  Ms. Racette said she would have to check with the Town attorney, but said she would be 
hesitant for the Committee to do this.  Vice Chairman Girardi asked if the Committee could sell ad space to 
businesses outside the Town of Pinetop-Lakeside.  Ms. Racette said she would advise against this idea and not 
expand out of the Town of Pinetop-Lakeside.   Discussion ensued regarding businesses in the County, Hon-Dah 
and Sunrise.  Ms. Racette said the Committee would have to make the policy and then take the policy to the 
Town Council.  More discussion ensued regarding the security of the website.  Councilmember Krigbaum 
asked for an explanation of integrating the visit site with the .gov site.  Geo said they would keep the existing 
.gov website and would build a tourism website.  Chairman Petersen said there would be a link on the visit site 
to go to the .gov site.  He said the visit site would have to be user friendly.  Sam John asked all three 
companies how they would track the user experience.  Geo, IMS and Websrefresh said they all use google 
analytics and heating mapping for monthly reviews and reports.  Committeemember McKee asked Geo to 
explain the price range of $3,500.00 to $5,000.00 on their proposal.  Geo said the $1,500.00 range is due to 
features added and any additional matenance and support.  Ms. Racette said a decision did not have to be 
made today if the Committee would need additional time to review the proposals.  Chairman Petersen said 
the Advertising and Promotion Committee had budgeted $12,500.00 for the website, and said there is extra 
cash in a restricted fund that is for Advertising and Promotion.  Ms. Racette said the carryforward from past 
years would need Town Council approval, but said a line item transfer could be done without Council 
approval.  Chairman Petersen said there are funds available in other line items that had not been spent, and 
said these funds could be used for the website.  Ms. Racette asked for Councilmember Leslee Wessel’s 
opinion.  Councilmember Wessel said if the funds are available in the Ad and Pro budget it would be alright to 
use funds transferred within the budget.  Ms. Racette said every year there are transfer in the budget, and 
said the Council would see the transfers.  Committeemember McKee asked Geo if there would be any training 
provided.  Geo said training of staff would be included in the first year.   More discussion ensued regarding the 
proposals and the three different bid amounts.  Geo said they would provide and make the website the 
Committee wants to buy.  Websrefresh said they would not charge for minor changes after the first year is up, 
and said they would make minor changes at no cost.  Vice Chairman Girardi said the proposal from IMS for 
$14,500.00 is a lot of money.  Councilmember Wessel suggested the Committee needs to have their questions 
answered by the presenters, but said there comes a point where the Committee needs to stop asking 
questions because each presenter would keep one upping each other.  She said at some point the Committee 
would need to make a decision with the answers received and the proposals presented.  Chairman Petersen 
said the decision could be tabled until the January 2016 Advertising and Promotion meeting.   Ms. Racette said 
for the Committee to consider the proposals and what had been presented today when making their decision.  
Chairman Petersen asked Mr. John for his opinion.   Mr. John said all the questions had been answered, and 
said if Larry John Wright continues to be the advertising agency for the Committee there would not be a 
problem with any of the presenters.  He said the bigger concern is post website completion and who, other 
than the advertising agency, would maintain the website.  Committeemember Dahnk said someone at the 
Town should be trained to maintain and update the website.  Chairman Petersen asked Ms. Racette who 
would be a point person on Town staff trained on the website.  Ms. Racette said the social media duties are 
being spread out amongst the staff at Town Hall, and said four to five staff members would be trained on the 
website.  She said the .gov site is WordPress and said there is staff trained to edit the site.   



 
COMMITTEEMEMBER DAHNK MOVED TO TABLE THE DECISION TO THE JANUARY 20, 2016 ADVERTISING 
AND PROMOTION COMMITTEE MEETING.  COMMITTEEMEMBER TILTON SECONDED THE MOTION AND THE 
MOTION DIED FOR LACK OF A VOTE. 
 
COMMITTEEMEMBER BERMAN MOVED TO ACCEPT THE PROPOSAL FROM WEBSREFRESH.   THE MOTION 
DIED FOR LACK OF A SECOND. 
 
COMMITTEEMEMBER KRIGBAUM MOVED TO ACCEPT THE PROPOSAL FROM GEO.  COMMITTEEMEMBER 
MC KEE SECONDED THE MOTION.   
 
Discussion ensued regarding the motion.   
 
COMMITTEEMEMBER KRIGBAUM RESCINDED HER MOTION. 
 
Mr. John said he had not worked with any of the three companies that presented today.  He said based on 
cost, experience and websites each company had developed, he said he would recommend Websrefresh.  He 
said he feels Websrefresh would be able to design and manage an on-line booking tool that would be user 
friendly.  
 
COMMITTEEMEMBER KRIGBAUM MOVED TO ACCEPT THE PROPOSAL FROM GEO.  COMMITTEEMEMBER 
MC KEE SECONDED THE MOTION AND THE MOTION FAILED 2 TO 5 WITH CHAIRMAN PETERSEN, VICE 
CHAIRMAN GIRARDI, COMMITTEEMEMBER DAHNK, COMMITTEEMEMBER ARMIJO AND 
COMMITTEEMEMBER BERMAN OPPOSED. 
 
COMMITTEEMEMBER DAHNK MOVED TO ACCEPT THE PROPOSAL FROM WEBSREFRESH.  
COMMITTEEMEMBER BERMAN SECONDED THE MOTION.  
 
Committeemember McKee said he does not find the booking tool a huge value.  Chairman Petersen said he 
agrees with Committeemember McKee.  Committeemember Berman said he feels Websrefresh has diversity 
and a hospitality background, and said he feels they would create the kind of website the Committee wants.  
More discussion ensued.   
 
THE MOTION FAILED 2 TO 5 WITH CHAIRMAN PETERSEN, VICE CHAIRMAN GIRARDI, COMMITTEEMEMBER 
MC KEE, COMMITTEEMBER ARMIJO AND COMMITTEEMEMBER KRIGBAUM OPPOSED. 
   
COMMITTEEMEMBER DAHNK MOVED TO ACCEPT THE PROPOSAL FROM IMS MANAGEMENT.  
COMMITTEEMEMBER KRIGBAUM SECONDED THE MOTION.  
 
Committeemember Berman said IMS Management is too expensive.  Committeemember McKee said IMS is 
his second choice, and said their proposal had included everything the Committee required.  Chairman 
Petersen said he had worked with IMS, and said IMS had managed the visit.com website years ago.  
Committeemember Dahnk said the Committee would make sure IMS worked for their money to give the 
Committee the website wanted.    
 
THE MOTION PASSED 5 TO 2 WITH  VICE CHAIRMAN GIRARDI AND COMMITTEEMEMBER BERMAN 
OPPOSED. 
 



ITEM NO. 6, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION REGARDING UPDATE ON THE STATUS OF THE REQUEST FOR 
PROPOSALS FOR ADVERTISING FACILITATION: 
 
Chairman Petersen said the Requests for Proposals (RFP) are due on January 20, 2016.  Mr. John said Larry 
John Wright would be submitting a proposal. 
 
ITEM NO. 7, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION/LEGAL ACTION REGARDING UPDATE AND INFORMATION BY SAM 
JOHN OF LARRY JOHN WRIGHT ADVERTISING: 
 
Sam John said the website visitors were down from sixteen thousand to six thousand.  He said the organic 
search is up from last year.  He gave an update on the OOTV, OOIA and Facebook analytics.  He said Sonoran 
Living provided another proposal for filming in Pinetop-Lakeside.  He said they dropped the proposal package 
of $12,941.17 to $7,764.69.  He said they removed all of the digital elements and reduced the number of on 
locations segments from three to two days.  He said if Sonoran Living would commit to coming to film in 
Pinetop-Lakeside there would be room for negotiation.  He said for January 2016 he proposes $7,500.00 on 
OOTV and $2,500.00 on OOIA.   
 
COMMITTEEMEMBER KRIGBAUM MOVED TO SPEND $7,500.00 ON OOTV AND $2,500.00 ON OOIA FOR 
JANUARY 2016.  COMMITTEEMEMBER DAHNK SECONDED THE MOTION AND IT CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
ITEM NO. 8, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION BY THE PINETOP-LAKESIDE CHAMBER OF COMMERCE ON FESTIVALS, 
ACTIVITES, STATISTICS, TRACKING AND TOURISM: 
 
Committeemember Dahnk said currently the Chamber does not have a lot going on.  She said the Holiday Putt 
Putt was very successful.   She said it had been very quiet, but should pick up with the arrival of the snow.  She 
said the Arizona Office of Tourism is putting together a Happy Trails Tour for April 2016.  She said they would 
spend one day and two nights in the Pinetop-Lakeside area.  She said the tour would be in Town Tuesday April 
12, 2106, spending April 13th in Town and leaving on April 14th.  Chairman Petersen said the White Mountain 
Regional Chambers are putting together a conference for NACOG, and said it would be held in April 2016.   
 
ITEM NO. 9, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION BY THE TOWN OF PINETOP-LAKESIDE PARKS AND RECREATION 
DEPARTMENT: 
 
Ms. Racette said the Community Services Manager position had sixty-four applicants, and said she had made 
an offer to an applicant.  She said she will know by the end of the week if he had accepted the position.  She 
said this position would be the staff liaison for the Advertising and Promotion Committee.  She said the 
Christmas tree lighting went well, and said the wreaths and decoration are on the solar light poles.  She said 
the ice rink would not be operating this year.  She said there had been some problems with the two co-
directors of the Ice Rink LLC, and said the Town had supported the ice rink last year with man hours.  She said 
last year the Town gave over two hundred man hours to set up and take down the rink.  She said the ice rink 
board did pay off the debt owed to the Town.  She said she hopes this would be a year in transition and hopes 
next year there would be a public ice rink.  Chairman Petersen said the snow plow clearing had been excellent 
this year.  Ms. Racette said the crew put in one hundred and ninety-five man hours on the machines during 
the storm.  Committeemember Krigbaum asked Ms. Racette for an update on the purchase of Woodland Lake 
Park.   Ms. Racette said the Town is in the process of looking at the appraisal on Woodland Lake Park, and said 
the Town is looking at putting Woodland Lake Park and Mountain Meadow in the capital improvement plan 
and researching financing options.  She said the Council would look at the options and decide to move forward 
or not.  Ms. Racette said the priority from the Council is as follows:  road improvement, technology plan for 
broad band infrastructure and better internet for economic development, tied for third and fourth are Town 



hall relocation and to finish Mountain Meadow Park, purchase of Woodland Lake Park, mandatory curb side 
recycling and trash collection and a commercial center for a downtown area.  Committeemember Berman 
asked for a time frame on each item.  Ms. Racette said each project has a different time frame, and said the 
projects would happen fairly quickly, with the exception of the technology plan.  She said Town hall relocation 
would happen in the next six to eight months with council approval.  She said curb side recycling would be six 
to eight months, and said, depending on the Forest Service, the purchase of Woodland Lake Park would be 
two to three years.  She said if the Town chooses to bond, the finishing of Mountain Meadow Park would be 
one and a half years.  She said the goals would happen pretty quick is the Council makes the policy decision to 
move forward.   
 
ITEM NO 10, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION BY THE ARIZONA GAME AND FISH DEPARTMENT: 
 
Committeemember Tilton had left the meeting and no update was given. 
 
ITEM NO. 11, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION REGARDING TOURISM ACTIVITIES ON TRIBAL LANDS: 
 
Hugh Keeler said Sunrise had two great storms that over performed for Sunrise. He said Sunrise received over 
three feet of snow out of the two storms.   He said all three mountains would be open on Thursday, December 
17, 2015.  He said Sunrise had been feeling the neglect of the valley TV stations.  He said they had been using 
Dave Pratt and Anne Groebner for their TV station connections, and said that had been helping with move TV 
presence.  He said radio ads and small TV ads will be starting.  He said sales are up and said the season pass 
holder sales are up compared to last year.   
 
 
 
 
 
  
The meeting adjourned at 12:13 p.m.    
       Advertising and Promotion Committee 
 
 
       _______________________________ 
        Jill Akins, Assistant to the Town Clerk 
 
 
 


